United Nat'lg[](s 1/ bl _ AJc.3/54/5R 43

AR\
\\li )\// Fifty-fourth session 30 November 1999
NS .

7 Official Records Original: English

Third Committee

Summary record of the 43rd meeting
Held at Headquarters, New York, on Thursday, 11 November 1999, at 3 p.m.

Chairman Mr. GaluSKa . ... (Czech Republic)

Contents
Agenda item 112: Promotion and protection of the rights of childcentinued
Agenda item 116: Human rights questionsr{tinued
(a) Implementation of human rights instrumerdsr{tinued

(b) Human rights questions, including alternative approaches for improving the
effective enjoyment of human rights and fundamental freedoorgifiued

(c) Human rights situations and reports of special rapporteurs and representatives
(continued

(d) Comprehensive implementation of and follow-up to the Vienna Declaration and
Programme of Actiondontinued

(e) Report of the United Nations High Commissioner for Human Rigiuistinued

This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be sent under the signature of a member of the
delegation concernedithin one week of the date of publicatitinthe Chief of the Official Records
Editing Section, room DC2-750, 2 United Nations Plaza, and incorporated in a copy of the record.

Corrections will be issued after the end of the session, in a separate nourgér each Committee.

99-82367 (E)



A/C.3/54/SR.43

The meeting was called to order at 3.25 p.m review permissible reservations, with a view to
withdrawing them. The purpose of reservations was to
encourage early accession to international treaties,

Agenda item 112: Pomotion and protection of the allowing flexibilityin the compliance of States parties with
rights of children (continued (A/C.3/54/L.46 and their obligations under those treaties. The fact that some
L.49) 50 countries had made reservations in respect of the
Draft resolution A/C.3/54/L.46: The girl child Convention on the Rights of the Child did not imply their

failure tosupportthe géctives of the Convention. Rather,
. ; . X such reservations reflected their particular national
Barbuda, Austria, Belarus, Belize, Benin, Burkina Fas%ﬁuations. Had they been unable to make reservations,

Cambodia, Ghana, Qrenada, India, Jamamg, Madagas Rbse countries might not have acceded to the Convention
Panama, the Republic of Korea, the Republic of Moldovat all

Saint Vincent and the Grenadines, San Marino, Spain, _
Uganda and Uzbekistan had become sponsors of drdft Singapore was concerned aboutan apparenttrend to
resolution A/C.3/54/L.46. The draft resolution containe€éliscourage reservations. If certain treaty obligations could
no programme budget implications. not be the subject of a resation, then the treaty or

. convention itself should expressly prohibitit. Singapore’s
2. Draft resolution A/C.3/54/1..46 was adopted position on the issue of permissible reservations applied

. . ., to all such resolutions.
Draft resolution A/C.3/54/L.49: The rights of the child

1. The Chairman announced that Antigua and

Mr. Gallagher (United States of America) said that

. . 9.
3. The Chairman said that the draft resolution g yejegation regretted not having been able to sponsor the
contained no programme budgetimplications, butpointegds | tion, but had joined the consensus in view of the

out that the statement from the controller read out at the tance that it attached to protection of children’s
41st_meet|ng with regar_d todraftresolution A/C.3/54/L.599hts_ It was essential to implement existing norms to
applied to draft resolution A/C.3/54/L.49 as well. prevent further abuse and brutalization of children in
4. He announced that Cambodia, Congo, Equatoriednflict situations, ensuring adherence to and the raising
Guinea, Eritrea, Ghana, Indonesia, Jamaica, Malavaf existing standards in that regard.

Mozambique, Swaziland, Togo, Uganda, the Unitefly s gelegation noted the standard-setting exercise

Republic ofTan_zama, and Zimbabwe had become SPONSBEIng carried out by the working group on a draft optional

of draft resolution A/C.3/54/L.49. protocol to the Convention on the Rights of the Child on

5. Draft resolution A/C.3/54/L.49, was adopted the involvement of children in armed conflicts and looked

¥orward to negotiations on that matter. Until a new

tandard had been set, the phrase “the use of children as
Idiers”, contained in operative paragraph 12 of section
should be interpreted under general international law
d under the provisions of article 77 of Additional

6. Ms. Lee (Singapore), speaking in explanation o
position after the adoption of draft resolutior?
A/C.3/54/L.49, said that while Singapore supported t
general thrust of the draft resolution, it had once aga
been unable to sponsor it. Operative paragraph 2 of t .
resolution urged States parties to regularly rzview a thCOI lof1977tothe Qeneva Conv_entlons of 1949_and
reservations with aviewtowithdrawing them. The Viennd ticle 38 of the Convention on the Rights on the Child.
Convention on the Law of Treaties drew a distinctiodl. His delegation regretted the lack of clarity of
between permissible and non-permissible reservatiopsragraph 12 of section Il of the draft resolution on that
based on their compatibility with the jebt and purpose point. Consensus had been possible because operative
of relevant treaties. Reservations were explicitly allowgghragraph 6 of section Il established the overall context
if compatible with the glect and purpose of the relevantfor that section, reaffirming existing standards as reflected
convention. Moreover, under article 51, paragraph 2, of tirethe Geneva Conventions of 1949 and the 1977 additional
Convention on the Rights of the Child only reservationgrotocols thereto. Lastly, his delegation noted with
incompatible with its oject and purpose were notsatisfaction the adoption of International Labour
permitted. In other words, it allowed for permissiblérganization (ILO) Convention 182, which had language
reservations. on the use of children as soldiers, together with Security

7. Singapore felt that it was thus highlyinappropriatgouncn resolution 12611999) on children and armed

tosuggestthat States parties should be obliged toregularly



A/C.3/54/SR.43

conflict. It was regrettable that the Genekakemblyhad 17. The Chairman invited the Committee to continue
chosen not to reflect those developments. its general discussion of sub-items (b), (c), (d) and (e) of

12. Ms. Smolcic(Uruguay) welcomed the consensus oft9enda item 116.

thedraftresolution, thanked all those who had contributd®. Mr. Zmeevski(Russian Federation) said thathuman
tothediscussion, and noted in particular the flexibilityandghts issues should be a factor which brought peoples,
unflagging efforts of the delegations of Finland an&tates and civilizations closer together, and should not be
Austria. used as a pretext or justification for illegal actions which
J)ypassed the Charter of the United Nations and were

recommendtothe General Assemblythatittake note oftﬁ@med out without the authorization of the Security

report of the Secretary-General on the status of t puncil. It was _not“ hard to fore_see_ th_e (,1,estruct|ve
Convention on the Rights of the Child, contained i onsequences which “armed humanitarianism” could have

document A/54/265 or the protection of human rights, the development of
' democracy, and ultimately, the fate of the world.
14. It was so decided

13. The Chairmanproposedthatthe Committee shoul

19. Aclearexamplewasthe Kosovo crisis. [twas obvious
that the way out of the Kosovotasemate and the

Agenda item 116: Human rights questions ; . : . :
g ghtsq prevention of a humanitarian disaster lay in strict and

(continued . . . ; : .

consistent implementation of Security Council resolution
(a) Implementation of human rights instruments 1244 (1999). His delegation shared the view of the United
(continued (A/C.3/54/L.53) Nations High Commissioner for Human Rights that in

(b) Human rights questions, including alternative Kosovo “spedl attention must be given to the protection
approaches for improving the effective of all communities and the establishment of a civil society
enjoyment of human rights and fundamental based on the rule of law and respect for human rights”
freedoms(continueq (A/54/93, 137, 216, (A/54/36, para. 11). It was crucial that there should be no

A/54/222 and Add.1, A/54/303, 319, 336, 360, distortion of those words when they were translated into
386, A/54/399 and Add.1, A/54/401, 439 and 491§ction. Otherwise, not only would faith in the capability
of United Nations human rights bodies be shaken, but the
whole of Europe could find itself on the brink of a new
catastrophe.

(c) Human rights situations and reports of special
rapporteurs and representatives(continued
(A/54/188, 302, A/54/330-S/1999/959, A/54/359, ) ) ) _ )
361, 365, 366, 387, A/54/396-S/1999/1000, 20. Terrorism, aggressive nationalism and separatism

A/54/409, 422, 440, 465-467, AI54/482, A/54/49F0sed a real danger to democracy, human rights and
and A/54/499; A/C.3/54/3 and 4) development. The human rights machinery of the United

Nations, including special procedures, must be adapted as
a matter ofurgency to address the problems which gave
rise to those types of human rights violations. Otherwise,
it would hardly be possible to talk of attaining the goal of

(d) Comprehensive implementation of and follow-
up to the Vienna Declaration and Programme of
Action (continued

(e) Report of the United Nations High the universal observance ofhumanrights. Thereportofthe
Commissioner for Human Rights(continued High Commissioner (A/54/36, para. 113) referred to the
(A/54/36) prevention of violations as the most effective means of

ensuring human rights protection. The basis for a strategy
of prevention must be depoliticization of United Nations
human rights activities, and elimination of double

standards and selective approaches.
15. The Chairmanannouncedthat Nicaragua, Portugaf

and Yemen had become sponsors of draft resoluti é In_his report on the work of the Organization

Draft resolution A/C.3/54/L.53: International
Convention on the Protection of the Rights of All
Migrant Workers and Their Families

A/C.3/54/L.53, which contained no programme budg /54(1’ para. 19)_’ the S“_ecretgry-Ggr_]er’?l had ref_e_rr_ed to
implications the widespread rise of “identity politics”. The artificial

cultivation of politics based on “ethnic homogeneity” was
16. Draft resolution A/C.3/54/L.53 was adopted sowing the seeds of future humanitarian disasters and
crises, which the early warning system of the United
Nations was designed to prevent. Ethnic cleansing and



A/C.3/54/SR.43

inter-ethnic conflicts stemmed from denial of the simpleasualties and damage tohousingin theliberated districts,
truth that all people were equal in their dignity and rightsnaking it possible for people to return to their homes, it

22. Although many European States had given eqd/éﬁis clear that those instructions were being carried out.
legal status to the languages spoken by large ethmét“ra”y' his Government had_ no reliable information
communities. in north-east Estonia. where Russiaf@0ut the situation in the territories controlled by the

constituted 80to 90 per cent of the population, the Russigﬁnd'ts'

language was officially excluded from the sphere of officid26. Attempts were now being made to create the
communication. In Latvia, the new law on the Statampression that there was a humanitarian disaster in the
language gave Russian the status of a foreign languagerthern Caucasus. That hackneyed scenario had alsobeen
even though it was the mother tongue of 40 per cent of thsed in the Balkans to exert pressure on the Russian
population. It was difficult to understand why the glarindg-ederation. In reality, there was no humanitarian disaster
discrimination against Russians and othersliving in Latvia the northern Caucasus, and there would be no such
and Estonia was being stubbornly ignored. The Russidisaster. The Russian Federation had sufficient strength
Federation would insist that Latvia and Estonia shoubhd resources to prevent it. At the same time, it was not
correct their approaches to human rights issues iafusing assistance from international humanitarian
accordance with the requirements laid down by the Unitedganizations, a number of which had already started work.
Nations, the Organization for Security and Cooperation ifthe Russian Federation was prepared to cooperate with all
Europe and the Council of Europe. those who regarded the eventsin Chechnya not as another

23. The potential of the United Nations and its Chartépund in a global geopolitical game, but as an insolent

forhumanizinganddemocratizinginternationalrelation(éﬁIallenge to Russian democracy by the forces of

was far from exhausted. Efforts in that direction would blgternatlonal terrorism.

given great impetus by the proposal put forward 7. Mr. Tessema (Ethiopia) said that the world
President Yeltsin in June 1999 for formulating a concepbntinued to witness flagrant human-rights violations,
of peace in the twenty-first century, with a viewto creatingarticularly in situations of armed conflict. Eritrea’s
a new culture of peace in which the top priority would baggression against Ethiopia was a case in point. The
a world without wars and conflicts, with human rights foEritrean Government had unleashed unprovoked
everyone. States must unite their efforts to achieve thaggression against Ethiopia, attacking civilian targets and
goal, and must work out an integral strategy on the basisltural sites. Eritrean forces had bombed densely-
of steadfast observance of the requirements of the Champepulated towns, killing and maiming civilians,
and international law. It was to be hoped that theéesecratingchurchesanddeliberatelydestroying Ethiopia’s
Committee and other United Nations human rights bodisscial and economic infrastructure. People living in
would make a substantial contribution tothat undertakingccupied areas had no access to health care or education,

24. Concerns had been expressed about the situatiofVfij!€ thousands of displaced persons were sheltering in
the Chechen Republic ofthe Russian Federation. It was fif/€f centres and mountain hideouts.

Russian Federation itself that was the most concern2d. Eritrea continued to lay anti-personnel landmines
about the events there. Gross and mass human righksng its borders with Ethiopia, claiming the lives of
violations had been going on for too long, and witlnnocent civilians and killing and injuring vast numbers
impunity, in and around the territory of Chechnya. Afteof animals. Large tracts of agricultural land had been laid
the incursion of armed bands into Dagestan, and txaste. Ethiopians living in the occupied areas had been
inhuman massacres of innocent people in Moscofarced to adopt Eritrean nationality or face confiscation of
Volgodonsk and Buinaksk, the need to protect democratheir land and property and the denial of the right to gain
and the rule of law in the Russian Federation from thtéeir livelihood. Young men in those areas had been
shock forces of international terrorism had becommonscripted into the invading army and forced to fight
obvious. His Government had had no other choice. It wagainst their own country.

prem;ely to free the Chechen pe°p_'e from_the yoke 95. The Eritrean regime held thousands of Ethiopian
terrorism and lawlessness that Russian soldiers were NOWionals hostage in a situation of extreme deprivation

risking their lives. Civilians were being held against their will and faced the
25. The Russian forces were under strict instructionspoospect of summary execution, torture, arbitrary
avoid civilian casualties. Since there were mal civilian  detention, rape and systematicintimidation. Thousands of



A/C.3/54/SR.43

Ethiopian nationals were detainedin Eritrean camps, whi33. The Israeli Minister of the Interior had said, on 17
others had been dumped on the border with Ethiopia. Wékttober 1999, that that fact that an East Jerusalemite
over 45,000 Ethiopian civilians had been deprived of theiesided abroad for a number of years would not be cause
property, beaten and tortured before being expelled frdior revoking his permanentresidency status. Human rights
Eritrea. Aconcerted hate campaign against Ethiopians Haad been at the centre of public debate, both in the media
been spearheaded by the Eritrean police. The Eritreand in the education system. Dozens of non-governmental
Governmentitself incited mob violence against Ethiopiaorganizations, working freely and without hindrance, had
civilians. played a central role in promoting and protecting human
30. The Eritrean regime had failed to disclos ights. Lastly, a certain delegation which had praised itself

information concerning the whereabouts of Ethiopia r |ts| |mpehccr?bls h_uman r_|ghts record shpu_ld at least
prisoners ofwar and civilian detaineegd@ntinformation €OMP!Y With the basic requirement to submit its reports

suggested that the regime had stepped up its campaigH'?)ger article 40 ofthe International Covenant on Civiland
mass detention, harassment and expulsion. Racignf!lical Rights. Its report was 14 years overdue.

xenophobiaandinhumane treatment of Ethiopian civiliarggl. Mr. Tekle (Eritrea) said that since Ethiopia had
continued to exacerbate the situation. It was imperatibegun its systematic violation of the human rights of
that the criminals responsible for such human-righritreansand Ethiopians of Eritrean origin, ithad deported
violations should be tried for crimes against humanity. Thedose to 70,000 of them on ethnic grounds, confined 2,000
Eritrean authorities, the police force and individuals whim harsh concentration camps, was responsible for the
took part in such atrocities should be forced to answer fdisappearance of 1,500 more and deprived 15,000 others
the crimes that they had committed against thousandsodf both jobs and housing without allowing them to
Ethiopian nationals. emigrate. By and large, those facts had been corroborated

31. Mr. Oron (Israel) said that references to Israel haBy Amnesty International and Human Rights Waich. In

been made in some of the reports and during tﬁé}ldition, over 250,000 Eritreans_ had been int_ernally
consideration of sub-items (b) and (d), some in good faiFHS_p_laced by the bombgrd_ment of villages, often aimed at
and some in bad. Certain basic facts had been ignoreaclw_IIan targets.The Ethiopian G_overnmenthad_, moreover,
some of the remarks. A serious peace process was tak |berately_carr|e_d out a r_a_ust hate_ campaign against
place between the lIsraelis and the Palestinians. Eﬁ treans, with a view to inciting ethnic violence.
ambitious timetable for resolving the outstanding issu@&s. Eritrea itself had not espoused any policy to deport
had been set, and intense negotiations were taking plageviolate the human rights of Ethiopiansin Eritrea. [t was
Over 90 per cent of the Palestinians living in Gaza and thieerefore morallyindefensible for delegations speakingin
West Bank lived under the Palestinian Authority. A safthe Committee to accuse both countries of similar
passage corridor was in operation between Gaza and W@ations, as Canada and Finland had done. It should be
West Bank. Palestinian prisoners, many of whom had bernted that the latest JoiaAssembly of the European Union
involved in attacks on innocent civilians, had beeandthe African, Caribbean, and Pacific States had adopted
released. Further redeployment in the West Bank wasesolution callingupon Ethiopiatoacceptandimplement
expected in the upcoming days. the Organization of African Unity (OAU) peace proposal

32. Decisions taken by his Government regarding tr?é‘d to prevent continued violation of the human rights of

dismantling of illegal settlements had been implementeﬁt.hn'c Eritreansin Ethiopia. The International Committee

The Prime Minister of Israel had pledged to withdra' the Red Cross (ICRC), as well, had publicly condemned

Israeli troops from Lebanon by the summer of 2000 Whicﬁthiopia’s latest expulsions of Eritreans across hazardous
it was hoped, would occur in the framework of af€rritoryas a violation of the Geneva Conventions. On the

agreement between the parties concerned. Israel’s Suprd@ggls Of an understanding reached with the ICRC
Court played a leading role in protecting human rights arjd €Sdent, Eritrea was planning to ratify all the relevant
individual freedoms, as in the recent ruling on th&€Neva Conventions as soon as possible.
interrogation methods of the Israeli security agency. Tt86. Rather than denying the expulsions, the Ethiopian
Israeli Ministry of Justice had proposed legislation t&overnmentsimply claimedtherighttoorderthem. In the
strengthen a 1997 law prohibiting Governmentagents framterests of justice and future relations between two
using threats, pressure or humiliation to extracteighbouring peoples, Ethiopia must be told in no
information. uncertain terms that no nation had any such right. It was
the international community’s obligation to protect human



A/C.3/54/SR.43

rights in all corners of the world and in all nationsguestion of economic growth. Civil, political, economic,
whether small or large. As expected, Ethiopia legelated social and cultural rights were mutually reinforcing, and
Eritrea’s reiterated call for allowing Unitedilons human theinternational community had aresponsibilitytoensure
rights agencies to visit both countries to investigate tteeholistic approach to the protection of human rights and
reciprocal charges of human rights violations. Yet the netire elimination of poverty, one of the most urgent human
total silence of the international community at Ethiopia’'sghts challenges. The international community must also
refusal had been dumbfounding. Then@oittee and the work together to combat racism, and he welcomed the
international community should insist also that Ethiopiholding of the World Conference against Racism, Racial
stop holding the peace process hostage by refusinghiscrimination, Xenophobia and Related Intolerance in
accept the United &tions-endorsed OAU peace proposalSouth Africa. Therights of the child, the prevention of the
which alone would bring peace and stability to the regioisexual abuse of children and the use of child soldiers were

37. Mr.Wille (Norway) said thatitwas encouraging thaf/SO Priorities.

human rights were a priority on the international agenddl. The Convention on the Rights of the Child offered
Despite increasing unrest, violence and instability ia clear framework for the protection of children. More
several countries and disparities between as well as wittdttention needed to be paid to freedom of religion or belief,
States, the world community had the knowledgeassary especially in resolving conflicts. He stressed his
to prevent such negative trends from gaining groun@overnment’'s commitment to the most fundamental of
International human rights instruments were importahiuman rights, the right to life and condemned the death
tools for building a world community based on the peacefpknalty, noting with concern that in some States it was
resolution of conflicts, freedom from poverty and respecised against juveniles and the mentally impaired. Human
for human rights. While no panacea, respect for humaights required a universal commitment to the dignity of
rights must be an integral part of any response to tle®ery human being. Issues arising out of violations of
challenges facing the world. international law could not be overlooked. His Government
38. Each State had an obligation toensuretherespecE ?reT°f¢ bellev_ed that_ 't. was urgent_to establ_lsh an
the human rights of every individual on the planet, anEectlvemternanonal criminal courfcandmtendecﬂitdy
more could certainly be done to achieve that goal. F e Rome Statute as soon as possible.

example, his Government would soon present a natio. He noted with concern the persistence of conflicts and
plan of action on human rights to Parliament. At theuman rights violations throughout the worilater alia,
international level, using human rights instruments asimlraq, East and West Timor, Afghanistan, Myanmar, the
basis, States could work together to improve the hum@emocratic Republic of the Congo, Rwanda, Eritrea,
rights situation by including human rights perspectives iGthiopia, Colombia, the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia,
United Nations activities, making the Commission oferbia, Angola, SierraLeone, Burundi, andthe Sudan. His
Human Rights more effective and efficient, assisting thaelegation called on all parties involved in conflict
relevant treaty bodies in streamlining and modernizirgjtuationsto seek a peaceful resolution totheir disputes and
their work and allocating more resources to the Office @nsure the protection ofhuman rights for all in accordance
the High Commissioner for Human Rights. with international human rights instruments.

39. Bilateral dialogue should be undertaken in the ard&@. Norwaywas involved in open and frank dialogue with
of human rights, and civil society should also be morgeveral countries, which was always followed up by
involvedin the promotion and protection of human rightgractical involvementin the field and stressed cooperation
The business community should also heed the call by thetween non-governmental organizations, academic
Secretary-General in 1998 to establish a global compagstitutions, media and other civil society partners. Such
of shared values and principles. In Norway, employerdjalogue did not however imply approval of a partner’s
employees, non-governmental organizations, acadernieman rights record and the objective was always the
institutions and the Government were cooperating on teame: the defence of human rights. A recent round-table
issue of human rights with a view to better policgonference on humanrightshad been heldwith China, and
development. he therefore expressed concern at the crackdown on
40. The family of nations must understand that humaq{-S_Si_dems’ the use of the death pen_alty and_restrictions on
rights were no longer limited to only civil and politicalre“g'ous freedom there and underlined the importance of

rights and that human developmentwas nolonger asimpfeePeCt fqr the ri_ghts of the people ofT_ibet.Apromising
'9 ! velop W g Fmean rights dialogue had begun with Cuba, but he



A/C.3/54/SR.43

expressed concern at recent setbacks in the human righés dismayed that the Russian authorities had refused
situation in that country. access to the territory by an OSCE fact-finding mission at

44. The Foreign Minister of Norway had recentlyvisited timé when some00,000 refugees were deprived of

Turkey as part of an ongoing bilateral dialogue on humapternational assistance. ltwas regasle that geopiical

rights. In that context, he stressed the need to protect & 'ti€s had prevented the international community from
cognizing the seriousness of the situation and from

rights of the Kurdish population, but was encouraged [ . | f I f [
the deepening contacts between Turkish and Norwegi; fling early to forestall a tragedy. Unfortunately, current

civil society. There were a number of Ioromismdnte_rna_tionalstructureswe-renotyetreadytotakeef“fective
developments in the human rights field. Human rights wef&tioNn in such cases.

universal and indivisible, and his delegation believed thd®. Ms. Barghouti (Observer for Palestine), speakingin
the new millennium would see renewed efforts texercise of the right of reply in response to the statement
implement such rights to the common advantage ofade by Israel, said that her delegation was committed to
mankind. the successful conclusion of the peace negotiations. The

45. Ms. Romulus (Haiti) reaffirmed her delegation’s Palestinian people had been denied their most basic rights

conviction that the death penalty was an attack agair?ﬁd fundamental freedoms under Israeli occupation_and
human dignity and a violation of human rights. Resear ntinuedto suffer from the harsh living conditions arising
had shown that imposition of the death penalty did not ereff_or_“- Israel continued t_o violate the right_s_of the
fact discourage crime, and she noted that the Haitigﬁlesnn'an people through its repressive policies and

Constitution prohibited the death penalty. Her delegaticﬂ{adices' While it had dismantled a handiul of illegal

opposed, however, attempts within the United Natioﬁ?ttlements"thad als_osanctlc_)nedW|de-§cale_const_ruct!on
of new settlements in occupied Palestine, including in

system and its development activities to link the abolitio | Al q
of the death penalty to United Nations assistance, aﬂ%rusa em (Al-Quds).
appealed for more sensitivity with regard to that issue.50. Israel continued to impede the free movement of the

46. Mr. Bilman (Turkey), speaking in exercise of thePalestinian people,throughitshz_aparthehiq-lik_e ploli;:]ies and
right of reply in response to the statement made by 5 ught to alter the demographic and historical character

representative of Norway, reaffirmed that his Governmef] qer_usglem (A"Q“O!S)_ In prder to eSt"?‘b“Sh a J_ev_wsh
was committed to democratic institutions and to humdR&/ority in that Palestinian city, systematically depriving
rights and said that all Turkish citizens, whatever theﬂ)erusalem Palestinians oftheir residencycardstothat end.

ethnic, religious or cultural background, enjoyed the sani®¥ [OF ISrael’s claim that 90 per cent of Palestinians lived
rights. under the Palestinian National Authority, both the West

Bank, including Jerusalem (Al-Quds), and the Gaza Strip
47. Mr. Jurgenson (Estonia), speaking in exercise of thgyere still occupied territories. Israeli tanks could currently
right of reply in response to the statement made by th@ found in the town of Ramalla and the surrounding area.
representative of the Russian Federation, said that sevey@keover, it was not possible to bring even a tin of baby

fact-finding missions had been sent to Estonia by variousi|k powder into the West Bank or the Gaza Strip without
international organizations such as the United Nations, th&: consent of the Israeli authorities.

Organization for Security and Cooperation in Europ _ .
(OSCE), the Council of Europe and the Council of Balti 1. Thelsraeli Government should take concrete 6_1ct|on
Sea States, toinvestigate the human rights situation wit Rw'mﬁleme{xtt:e rele_va_mt Sefct'“r']”ty Council resolut;or:s, t
the framework of international assistance to his countf ghetder Wi d e_lr_)rr]ovualo_r:sg N et_peacer:] agreemert;_j_ a
after 50 years of Soviet occupation. None ofthose missiorns ad signhed. The United Nations had an abiding
had uncovered any human rights violations and there hEﬁfponS'b'“ty to find a solution to all outstanding issues,

been noethnicviolenceinthe 10 yearssince independen:gé'sm_]g_on a cqmplete cessation of Israel's occupation of
~ Palestinian territory, and assuring the Palestinian people
48. He expressed concern about the human righfkir right to self-determination.

situation in the northern Caucasus where the population L .

was the victim of an inhuman military campaign. He note _2' Mr. Musenga(Rwand_a),_ sp_eakln_g In exercise of the
that the Organization for Security and Cooperation ijaht of reply, expressed his |nd|gnat|pn at the statement
Europe had declared that the actions of the Russi?}qtherepresenta_tlveofl\_lorwgy. He believedthatthe blame
Federation in Chechnya had reached a level sufficient®. the human rights situation should be_ put wh_ere_ It
warrant the concern of the international community arff'ongedand noted, for example, thatamajor war criminal



A/C.3/54/SR.43

had recently been released by the In&ional Tribunal international community should draw the appropriate
for Rwanda despite the objections of the Rwandatonclusions. Another tactic of the Ethiopian Government
Government. He stressed that Rwanda was cooperatimgs to accuse his Government of committing violations and
fully with the United Nations, the United Nationscrimes which Ethiopia had committed or was about to
Development Programme (UNDP), the Office of the Highommit. The truth, however, wasimmutable. For example,
Commissioner for Human Rights and other internation#there was documentary evidence of Ethiopia’s use of child
organizationsinthe humanrights areaand wondered wisatdiers, laying of landmines and employment of
more could be expected. mercenaries.

53. Mr. YuWenzhe (China), speaking in exercise ofthes7. Mr. Basele (Democratic Republic of the Congo),
right of reply, said that the representative of Norway hagpeaking in exercise of the right of reply in response to the
made inappropriate comments about China. Article 36 oépresentative of Norway, said that his delegation had
the Chinese Constitution provided for freedom of religiomdicated that his Government had taken steps toimprove
and worship for all citizens. China had always paid gre#ite situation of children and detainees and had requested
attention to the cultural traditions and human rights @ssistance from the international community to carry out
minorities, including Tibetans. His delegon kelieved that the necessary reforms. Those steps should be regarded as
in the field of human rights, all countries should engageositive action in favour of human rights. The new
in dialogue on the basis of equality and mutual respechillennium meantdifferentthingsto different people. The
While there had been a useful dialogue with Norway ovénternational community should aspire to eliminate war
the past year, his delegation was gravely concerned abauatd ensure freedom for all peoples, within secure borders.
its use of the United Nations to make accusations agairtis Government looked forward to cooperation within the
China. Great Lakes region, and to peace within its rightful

54. Mr. Tekle (Eritrea), speakingin exercise ofthe righporders.

of replyin response to the representative of Ethiopia, séb@. Mr. Zmeevski (Russian Federation), speaking in
that it was quite clear which country was committed texercise of the right of reply in response to the comments
aggression, and which country was committed to peaceade by the representative of Estonia, said that, with
Both the President and the Prime Minister of Ethiopia haeégard to the situation in the northern Caucasus, his
openly threatened to use force against Eritrea. Whitkelegation’s statement had clearly indicated who was
Eritreahad cooperated with OAU to bring about a peacefublating human rights in that part of the Russian
solution to the conflict, Ethiopia had refused to sign thiEederation and the dangers which arose as aresult ofthose
last document of the OAU peace package. Yet even at tvielations.

current meeting, one delegation had chosen to bragg  \yith regardtothe human rights situation in Estonia,

Eritrea and Ethiopia together. the Estonian representative’s emotional statement had not
55. As to which of the two Governments was racist, hehanged his delegation’s viewthat human rightk&wions
referred to the statement that he had made under ageadd discrimination against Russians and other ethnic
item 115. For the past 19 months, the Ethiopiagroups were continuing.Itwas significantthatthe human
Government had been making unverifiable allegations tights situation was going to be further investigated by the
create confusion so that a frustrated and uncaring womldgpropriate regional structures. His delegation hoped that
would end up blaming both Governments. Unfortunatelyhe Estonian authorities would remedy the situation and
that tactic seemed to have worked. The Ethiopiamplementtherecommendationsoftheregional structures.
Government would never allow an on-the-sp
investigation by a third party because it knew full we
what would be found.

0. Mr. Tessema(Ethiopia), speakingin exercise of the

I ight of reply, said that nationality was determined by the
relevant national laws and pointed out that the persons
56. It remained to be seen whether the internationdéported from Ethiopia were Eritrean, regardless of their
community was honestly interested in the truth aboplace of residence, because, by virtue of article 24 of
human rights in Ethiopia and Eritrea, and if so, whethdfritrea’s referendum proclamation of 1992, they had opted
it would make any real effort to investigate the situatiofor Eritrean nationality. They were Eritrean alsoin terms
and whether the Ethiopian Government was ready to joirian Ethiopian law under which anyone acquiring another
his Government in extending an invitation to a humanationality forfeited Ethiopian nationality. Thus, Ethiopia
rights investigating body. If that was not the case, theas not deporting its own nationals.



A/C.3/54/SR.43

61. It should be noted, moreover, that the deportatiomell to verify the information before taking it for the truth
were not being carried out solely on grounds of nationalitgnd repeating it in the Committee.

as the Eritrean delegation claimed. On the basis of am Mr. Sriyono (Indonesia), speaking in exercise ofthe

evidence that Eritrea was clandestinely using Eritreapg, of reply, said, regarding the issue raised by Norway
living in Ethlopl_a to advance its war of aggression a_ngf East Timorese refugees in West Timor, that the
undermine Ethiopia’s economy and national security, y,nesjan Ministry of Welfare was taking steps to ensure
Ethiopia had done what was necessary to protect {$, satety ofthe refugees and provide them with sufficient

national interests. That was legitimate both undgg,j ,nq'safe passage and had already been working with

international law and Ethiopian legislation governing thf?]ternational humanitarian organizations. His delegation
deportation of undesirable foreigners. Furthermore, whe ked all Member States to help promote a constructive
after the deportation of those who had constituted SecurH?’élogue

risks, Eritrea had protested, calling for family _
reunification, Ethiopia had agreed to deport their familieEhe meeting rose at 5.40 p.m
as well.

62. Withregardtothe OAU peace proposal, Ethiopiahad
accepted it from the outset, just as it had earlier peace
proposals. It was Eritrea that had refused to make peace,
until its forces were defeated and driven from Ethiopian
territory. OAU had proposed implementing modalities that
included Eritrea’s withdrawal from specified territories,
andin July, Eritrea had professed to acceptthem. The OAU
current Chairman was supervising the technical
arrangements, and the process was presumablyunder way.
Ethiopia stood for peace. Eritrea, having invaded Ethiopian
territory, wasthe one that had toreverse its aggression and
withdraw.

63. Mr. Tekle (Eritrea), speakingin exercise oftheright
ofreply, said, on the nationalityissue, that the referendum
proclamation alluded to by the Ethiopian delegation was
based on the earlier Eritrean nationality proclamation,
article 1 of which had stated that any person born to a
parent of Eritrean origin, in Eritrea or abroad, was an
Eritrean by birth, and that a person of Eritrean origin was
any person residentin Eritrea in 1933. Obviously, neither
the referendum proclamation nor the earlier nationality
proclamation used the word “citizen”, because citizenship
or nationality could be conferred only after a State was
formed, which had not been the case in Eritrea atthe time
of either proclamation. After the Eritreans living in
Ethiopia had voted in the Eritrean referendum, they had
nonetheless continuedto hold Ethiopian passports, vote in
Ethiopian elections, pay taxes and go to schools in
Ethiopia. Surely, Ethiopia was not seriously claiming that
the 70,000 Eritreans that it had deported had suddenly all
been found to be spies.

64. Mr. Al-Humaimidi (lraqg), speaking in exercise of
the right of reply, observed that Norway had simply
repeated the allegations made by the Special Rapporteur
on the situation of human rights in Irag, which his
delegation had already refuted. Norway would have done



